
From: Information Officer

To: Communications; 

CC:

Subject: FW: Hastings Borough Council Request for Information 
Ref: 13/189

Date: Monday, April 22, 2013 9:54:53 AM

Attachments:

 

Start of Request for Information 

1)  Invoice issued to HBC by Mr Ward on 28th March for £15.47 for alleged 
clearance of rubbish & reporting of flytips & disposal of sundry items blocking 
pavements.

The Council does not accept your invoice & will not be paying it.  If you have 
specific concerns about the cleanliness of particular areas of a street, public 
open space or private land please report them to Mr M Hepworth, Head of 
Environmental Services, E Mail: mhepworth@hastings.gov.uk and this will be 
passed to the appropriate officer for investigation.

2)  Complaint regarding alleged lack of public consultation regarding the 
installation of new recycling facilities at Cornwallis Gardens & whether or not 
planning consent is required.

There is no statutory requirement for the Council to consult on piloting a mini 
recycling facility within Cornwallis Gardens.  However, the Council did discuss 
the proposals with colleagues in the Planning Department,  they advised that 
planning consent was not required, and that the proposals were acceptable 
from a development control perspective.  

 
NOTICE in anticipation of Judicial Proceedings. 

On 5th April you emailed the Council with a document addressed to the Chief 
Legal Officer at Hastings Town Hall, headed "NOTICE in anticipation of 
Judicial Proceedings".  This correspondence has been partly treated as a 
request under the Freedom of Information Act where request for information 
have been asked for.
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1.      In recent months works have been carried out in Cornwallis Gardens 
(Conservation Area 09) on the Garden at its heart, that have degraded the 
visual appearance, and naturalness of the open space there, and the need for 
these works may be open to dispute; and therefore in anticipation of bringing 
the matter to Judicial Review I request the following details be made over to 
me within 10 working days from Monday 08 APRIL 2013, e.g. before Monday 
22 APRIL 2013  

2.      Noting that, on inquiry made 26 March 2007 an Officer from the council 
subsequently rang me on 27 MARCH 2013, anonymously but declaring 
themselves to be part of the regeneration/recycling team, stating that if the 
“scheme” did not work out the Council were prepared to demolish the works 
and reinstate the Gardens, that Bulbs dug up were in their car and would be 
transplanted elsewhere and that other, more suitable areas in the immediate 
vicinity, already being used to dump household waste were given no 
consideration. And that the Building works (“Bunkers”) described in this 
document under Paragraph 3 ++ have been reported to Hastings Police 
[Serial: 361/27 MARCH 2013] 

3.       In respect of a built development in three places on the Gardens, 
reported by a Council Officer as being “recycling facilities”;

        3.1.    Proof the Hastings Borough Council owns The Cornwallis Gardens? 
- This information can be obtained via The Land Registry, please contact them 
direct on at www.landregistry.gov.uk or Tel 0844 892 1111.

 
3.2.    What Permission .. if any .. was sought to construct on the 
Land .. and what Legislation was applied?  ? - The following were 
consulted in respect of the positioning and permissions: East Sussex 
County Council Highway Authority to see if the units could be 
positioned on the Public Highway, (they said no); Planning and 
Conservation Dept. to check whether Planning Permission was needed 
and whether there were any Conservation Area issues, (there were 
not) and the Amenities Department to seek permission to utilise the 
Open Space, (this was agreed). 

  3.3.  What Public Consultation .. if any .. took place .. and with who? - 
Contact was made with the Lead member,  Ward Councillors and the 
Chair of the Castle Ward Residents Forum by E mail offering to attend 
meetings to explain the proposed scheme. 

3.4.    Which households in the immediate area were contacted with 
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regard to the development(s)? - The area affected by the new 
developments all households will be door knocked and leaflets 
distributed in the future prior to the scheme being introduced. Posters 
were also placed on the Community Notice Board in Cornwallis 
Gardens. 

3.5.    What, if any, Environmental Impact assessment took place and 
by whom? -  Not required therefore no information is held

3.6.    What, if any, Traffic impact assessment took place? -  Not 
required therefore no information is held 

3.7.    How was need established when there is a major recycling facility 
within 500 yards of these three sites, and a regularly used dump area 
within 50 of the nearest Bunker?  - The nearest recycling bring site is at 
Summerfields Leisure Centre and is nearer 600 yards away. This bring 
site provides for the collection of materials not all currently collected 
from households directly, such as textiles and glass. The proposal for 
Cornwallis Gardens area is for Community Recycling which the Council 
think is quite distinct from regional recycling at bring sites, where the 
majority of use is by people in cars. Our evidence is that only around 
10-20% of households are recycling at all in the area and we hope that 
the new style containers will help change that. There is no official 
"dump area" as described.. 

3.8.    Which department awarded the contract and how was the 
Contractor selected; e.g. was the work put out to tender? - The Waste 
and Recycling Team invited two Contractors to quote for the works and 
the most economically advantageous quotation was accepted.

3.9.    What impact on immediate local property values was 
established?  There is not a specific statutory requirement to look at 
impacts on local property values therefore no information is held

3.10.   What provisions have been made to ensure General Household 
waste is not dumped at the three locations?  There is no evidence to 
support the fact that recycling facilities attract dumping of waste. 
Arrangements will be put in place for daily checks and  clearance 
should it be required. Signage will also be erected to guide residents 
as to their proper use. 

 



3.11.   Why the three recycling facilities were placed immediately 
adjacent to the historic entry points onto the green space?  The points 
were identified as being the most accessible in serving the overall 
Cornwallis Gardens community.

 
       3.12.    What Hastings Borough Council actually proposes to do if the 
Scheme proves to be a failure; and what is the time scale allowed else the 
amount of unacceptable damage permitted before action to affect a     remedy 
is put into motion - The trial period runs for 6 months from April 2013 and will 
then be reviewed

4.      In respect of a Fully Mature ever-green Tree taken down during the 
Winter months (I believe January), which provided valuable cover to wild 
birds, squirrels; and provided valuable food for foraging animals including 
aforementioned species, foxes and badgers; and insects native to the 
gardens;  - Please see statement below:

        4.1     Is there Preservation Orders on the Trees populating Cornwallis 
Gardens?   
4.2.    If not why not? 

         .. if so then  

4.3.    Did the Borough Council follow the legal procedure to take down the 
Tree and can you provide else state where evidence of this is available for 
scrutiny?  

4.4.    Why was the tree brought down?  

 
The trees growing within Cornwallis Gardens belong to Hastings Council. 
These trees are not preserved, there is no reason to preserve them because 
they belong to the council and the council manages their tree stock in a 
sensible manner.

 
The tree removed was a horse chestnut. The reason for removal was 
because the tree was in poor health. Our term contractors Gristwood & Toms 
removed the Horse chestnut, the stump will be removed in due course. We do 
not remove trees without good reason, we replace removed trees where 
possible.



 
5.      In respect of one of two paths running through the gardens; 

5.1.    Why was one path “The Path”, recently, over the winter, 
resurfaced with Tarmac? - This path was is a very poor state and in the 
worst condition compared to the other so the priority under health and 
safety was to resurface as soon as possible.

 
5.2.    Why was Tarmac used rather than a material the same/similar to 
the other path (both paths were sympathetically resurfaced with a 
material commonly held up as appropriate to such open spaces in very 
recent times, and in keeping with declared aims in “Local Plan” 
documents; previous, e.g. 2004, and under consideration, e.g. the 
2013 currently under assessment? - The existing paths were 
constructed out of type 1 road stone with a "Fibredeck" surface 
treatment. Tarmac was used as this has a longer life, the tarmac will 
weather to a lighter colour over time.

  

5.3.    Who was the contract, in respect of the Tarmac’ing awarded to 
and how was the Contractor selected; e.g. was the work put out to 
tender? - The work was carried out using the Council's minor works 
contractor Booker & Best, which has been tendered/market tested 
regularly (please see website for details). Under the terms of this 
contract the Council can undertake work up to a value of £10,000 
without further market testing.

 
6.      In the event that I do not get the information requested by end of the 
period specified I will make an Application in the High Court to halt all 
proposed work on Cornwallis Gardens, including proposed use of the Bunkers 
recently built, else under construction.  

7.      I await your response; with all requested disclosures.  And I anticipate 
that you will treat any request requiring Freedom of Information Act 2000 
‘permission to be considered as being requested under that Act. If any other 
paperwork is required then please within 3 working days make this clear. My 
Telephone Number/Email/Postal Addresses are at top of this Document. 

 



 
End of Request for Information 
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